
REGULAR MEETING  
AGENDA 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, MAY 18, 2015, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,  

Guilin__, Anderson__. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 
Hospice of the Valley as the Business of the Month. 

 
b. Presentation of the 2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation Honor 

Award, on behalf of the State Historic Preservation Office, to the Mayor and 
Council of the Town of Florence, on behalf of the Florence Historic District 
residents and Home Tour volunteers.  

 
7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 

part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the 
public objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
a. Approval of Change Order No. 3 with Apache Underground and Excavation, 

for the Bailey Street waterline, for $37,376, with a total project cost not to 
exceed $648,691.20. 
 

b. Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Coolidge Engine & Pump, LLC, for 
emergency repair of Well #1, for $8,118.14, with a total project cost not to 
exceed $62,618.73. 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



c. Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Ripple Industries, for additional 
troubleshooting and start-up services with regards to installation of the 
supervisory control of Town wells and reservoir sites for $10,375, with a 
total project cost not to exceed $80,375. 

 
d. Approval of the resignation of Chairman Tom Celaya from the Arts and 

Culture Commission. 
 

e. Resolution No. 1520–15:  Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO 
ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE ARIZONA CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE COMMISSION NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM. 

 
f. Approval of the April 6, and April 20, 2015 Town Council minutes. 

 
g. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

 
i. April 1, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 

ii. September 18, 2014, October 16, 2014, and April 2, 2015 Planning and 
Zoning Commission minutes.  

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance No. 629-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .55 ACRES, FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 
MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT (APN 200-47-0250). (First reading May 4, 
2015) 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Interviews for vacant Council Seat: Interviews are being conducted in the 

order of applicant submittal.   Candidates will be asked to wait in the lobby 
until they are called to interview.  Once their interview is complete, 
applicants may remain in the Council Chambers for the remainder of the 
meeting.  
 
i. Jeffrey D. Wooley 

ii. Tom Smith 
iii. Karen J. Wall 
iv. Art Buckley 
v. S. Dulaine Coleman 
 

10. MANAGER’S REPORT 

11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON MAY 15, 2015, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH 
MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b.  

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation  
                      Award for the Annual Tour of Historic Florence 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation Award  for the Annual Tour of Historic Florence  
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015  
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Presentation of the 2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation Honor Award, on 
behalf of the State Historic Preservation Office, to the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, on behalf of the Florence Historic District residents and Home Tour 
volunteers.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1982, the Arizona Preservation Foundation and Arizona State Historic 
Preservation Office have partnered to present the Governor’s Heritage Preservation 
Honor Awards. These awards recognize people, organizations, and projects that 
represent outstanding achievements in preserving Arizona’s prehistoric and historic 
resources.   The award recipients are selected from nominations submitted from all over 
the State of Arizona.  One of the nine winners for 2015 was “Celebrating 30 years of 
Tours of Historic Florence‘s Historic Buildings and Sites”.    
 
Beginning in 1985, the Historic District Advisory Commission (HDAC) held the Historic 
Home Tour to raise funding for historic property markers/plaques.  The first attempt at 
fundraising proved successful and led the way to this annual event.  Leadership of this 
event has changed over the years, first with the Florence Chamber of Commerce which 
lead the tour for several years. The Chamber passed the event to the Florence Main 
Street Program that went on to coordinate the tour for 13 years.  The Parks and 
Recreation Department coordinated the event the past two events. In 2015, the Home 
Tour marked the 30th annual celebration called “The Heart of Florence-Adobe Walls of 
Love and Heartbreak”.   
 
The annual Home Tour includes a slightly different collection of historic homes and 
historic commercial buildings every year.  Each property is strategically selected by the 
Home Tour Committee/Town staff.  With the owner’s permission and with volunteers, 
the Town showcases these properties to the public and gives them the opportunity to 



Subject:  2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation Award  for the Annual Tour of Historic Florence  
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015  
Page 2 of 2 

experience the history of the Town. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Not applicable 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Presentation of the 2015 Arizona Governor’s Heritage Preservation Honor Award, on 
behalf of the State Historic Preservation Office, to the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence on behalf of the Florence Historic District residents and Home Tour volunteers.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
None 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Change Order No.  3 with Apache  
                   Underground and Excavation, for Bailey Street     
                   Waterline. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval CO  No. 3 with Apache Underground & Excavation Meeting date: May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order No. 3 with Apache Underground and Excavation, for 
the Bailey Street waterline, for $37,376, with a total project cost not to exceed 
$648,691.20. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Apache Underground and Excavation has completed work on the Bailey Street 
waterline. There were three change orders associated for their work.  The change 
orders are as follows: 
 
    Amount  Council Approval 
Contract Awarded:  $479,334.00  December 15, 2014 
Change Order No. 1         ($    5,166.05)  Not applicable 
Change Order No. 2 $137,147.25  March 3, 2015 
Change Order No. 3 $  37,376.00  Pending Council approval 
Amended Amount  $648,691.20 
  
Change Order No. 1 was a deduct change order; Change Order No. 2 provided for the 
installation of waterlines in the Turner Subdivision, and Change Order No. 3 is for 
additional asphalt for trench repair, concrete for curb and gutter due to poor field 
conditions and for additional concrete for a non-compliant ADA ramp. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost of Change Order No. 3 is $37,376.  There is funding in the Fiscal Year 
2014/2015 to complete this work. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 3 with Apache Underground and 
Excavation, for the Bailey Street waterline.. 
 
 



Subject: Approval CO  No. 3 with Apache Underground & Excavation Meeting date: May 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Contract 
Change Order No. 1 
Change Order No. 2 
Change Order No. 3 













































































johnm
Typewritten Text
Town Manager

johnm
Typewritten Text
May 18, 2015



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Coolidge       
                    Engine & Pump, LLC, for emergency repair of  
                    Well #1. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval of CO #1 for Well 1   Meeting date: May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 1  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order No. 1 with Coolidge Engine & Pump, LLC, for 
emergency repair of Well #1, for $8,118.14, with a total project cost not to exceed 
$62,618.73 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
Coolidge Engine and Pump, LLC, has completed the repair of Well #1.  There has been 
one change order associated for their work.  The change order is as follows:   
 
    Amount  Council Approval 
Contract Awarded:  $54,500.59  April 20, 2015 
Change Order No. 1           $  8,118.14  Pending Council Approval 
Amended Amount  $62,618.73 
 
Council approved the ratification of emergency repair of Well #1 on April 20, 2015.  The 
known cost at the time was $54,500.59.  Coolidge Engine and Pump, LLC, has 
submitted a final billing of $62,618.73.  The increase is for cleaning the debris from the 
well, re-videoing the well to determine the placement of the new bowls, and extending 
the depth of the new bowls by 20 feet. 
 
 FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The increase cost is $8,118.14 for Change Order No. 1 for the emergency repair of Well 
#1.  This increase will be paid from the Water Utility Fund. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 1, for emergency repair of Well #1. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Change Order #1  
Invoice 





 
 
 
 

                                                                                       INVOICE                                                              6108 
COOLIDGE ENGINE & PUMP LLC 

                                                                                       POST OFFICE BOX 957 · COOLIDGE, AZ 85128-0018                                               

PHONE: (520) 723-4556             R.O.C.188885 

 Sold To: Town of Florence Job No:   6002 

 P. O. Box 2670 Job Date:            March 6, 2015 

 Florence, AZ 85132-3050 Order No:            39734       Well #1 

 Joy.Jonas@florenceaz.gov  Invoice Date:    April 13, 2015 
QTY PART NO. DESCRIPTION PRICE UNIT AMOUNT 

1 SV12C-10 Simflo Bowl Assembly  (NSF-61 Compliant)   11,652 51 

440' ¾" SCH 40 PVC   154 00 

23 10" x 20' Butt Column Pipe   16,129 90 

23 3 x 1 15/16 Peerless Tube And Shaft Assembly   22,237 32 

8 3" x 10" Rubber Centering Spiders   117 00 

1 3 x 29" Stretch Tube   199 00 

1 1 15/16 x 80' Headshaft   199 00 

1  Banding And Buckles   85 00 

     50,773 73 

  OUTSIDE LABOR - Longmire & Hoover Well Service    

1 1st Well Video   700 00 

1 Re-shoot Well Video   600 00 

     1,300 00 

  OUTSIDE LABOR - Hoover Well Service    

20 Hours Labor To Air Lift Well   5,200 00 

10 Hours  Air Compressor   650 00 

     5,850 00 

  SCOPE OF WORK    

  Pull Pump For Repair    

  Video Well    

  Hoover Well Service - Airlift Fill From Well    

  Re-Video Well Fuel Surcharge 100 00 

  Install New Pump Freight 375 00 

   Well Video 1,300 00 

 Note: Pricing Changed Due To Adding 20' To Total Pump Setting To Hoover Well Service 5,850 00 

  Move Bowl Out Of Rubbed Area From Previous Setting Labor 4,220 00 

   Parts 50,773 73 

   Due Net 10  

  *Payment By Visa Or Master Card Incurs 3.2% Service  Fee* Total Invoice 62,618 73 
 

WHITE - CUSTOMER                         YELLOW - OFFICE                         PINK - ACCOUNTING 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Ripple  
                    Industries, LLC. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order No. 1 with Ripple Industries, for additional 
Subject: Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Ripple Industries   Meeting date: May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 2  
 

troubleshooting and start-up services with regards to installation of the supervisory 
control of Town wells and reservoir sites for $10,375, with a total project cost not to 
exceed $80,375. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
Ripple Industries has completed the work for the installation of SCADA equipment at 
well sites and reservoirs.  There was one change order associated for their work.  The 
change order is as follows:  
 

Amount  Council Approval 
Contract Awarded:  $70,000  July 21, 2014 
Change Order No. 1           $10,375  Pending Council Approval 
Amended Amount  $80,375 
 
On July 21, 2014, Council approved hiring of Ripple Industries, LLC, to install 
supervisory control and data acquisition equipment on Town wells and reservoir sites. 
That amount of the award was $70,000. 
 
During the construction of the Well 3B improvements, Ripple Industries, LLC, was 
engaged to work with the contractor for additional troubleshooting and start-up services 
beyond that which was initially contemplated in their original scope of work.  The 
additional cost is $10,375.  Staff has approached the Well 3B contractor for 
reimbursement of a portion of the added costs and has received a favorable response.  
Ripple Industries, LLC, is in the process of itemizing their work for consideration by the 
Town and contractor for those reimbursement costs. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost for Change Order No. 1 is $10,375, and is available in the Water Utility Fund. 
 
 
 



Subject: Approval of Change Order No. 1 with Ripple Industries  Meeting date: May 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 1 with Ripple Industries, LLC, for 
additional troubleshooting and start-up services with regards to the installation of the 
supervisory control and data acquisition equipment on Town well and reservoir sites. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Change Order No. 1  
Invoice 
 



 Change Order No. 1 

Date of Issuance: April 17, 2015 Effective Date: April 28, 2015 
Owner: Town of Florence Owner's Contract No.: WU-64 
Contractor: Ripple Industries, LLC Contractor’s Project No.: NA 
Engineer: NA Engineer's Project No.:  
Project: SCADA WU-64 Contract Name: SCADA WU-64 

The Contract is  modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description: Installation of supervisory control & data acquisition equipment at well sites and reservoirs.  
 

 

Attachments:  
 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES  
[note changes in Milestones if applicable] 

Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times: 
 Substantial Completion:   
$ 70,000.00  Ready for Final Payment:   

 days or dates 
[Increase] [Decrease]  from previously approved Change 
Orders No.        to No.      : 

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change 
Orders No.        to No.       : 

 Substantial Completion:   
$ NA  Ready for Final Payment:    

 days 
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 
 Substantial Completion:   
$ 70,000.00  Ready for Final Payment:   

 days or dates 
[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: [Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: 
 Substantial Completion:   
$ 10,375.00  Ready for Final Payment:    

 days or dates 
Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 
 Substantial Completion:   
$ 80,375.00  Ready for Final Payment:   

 days or dates 
RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED:

By:  By:  By:  
 Engineer (if required)  Owner (Authorized Signature)  Contractor (Authorized Signature) 
Title: John V. Mitchell Title Town Manager Title  
Date: April 30, 2015 Date May 18, 2015 Date  

Approved by Funding Agency (if 
applicable)  

By:    Date:  

Title:      
 



Ripple Industries, LLC
Ripple Industries, LLC
9221 E Baseline Rd #109-234
Mesa, AZ  85209

(480)442-8199
messick.robert@rippleind.com

Invoice
Invoice #

1561

Date

04/17/2015

Due Date

05/17/2015

Terms

Net 30

Bill To
John Mitchell
Town of Florence
PO Box 2670
Florence, AZ  85232

EnclosedAmount Due

$10,375.00

✂
Please detach top portion and return with your payment.

✂

Activity Quantity Rate Amount
 • Change order for additional troubleshooting and startup services 1 10,375.00 -9,999,999,910,375.00

services at Well 3/4. -9,999,999,999,999.00
 • PO 36820 -9,999,999,999,999.00

Ripple Industries appreciates the opportunity of doing business with you. If you have any
questions regarding information provided herein, please contact your Ripple Industries
accounts manager.

Total $10,375.00



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7d. 

MEETING DATE: May 18, 2015  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:  Resignation of Chairman Tom Celaya from the  
                    Arts and Culture Commission   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Tom Celaya resignation from the Arts and Culture Commission                    Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Accept the resignation of Chairman Tom Celaya from the Arts and Culture Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Chairman Tom Celaya was appointed to the newly formed Arts and Culture 
Commission on January 5, 2015 for a three year term and was assigned as the 
Chairman for a one year period, per Town Code.  Chairman Celaya has been 
instrumental in establishing the initial mission and direction of the Arts and Culture 
Commission for the past few months.   
 
Beginning on May 4, 2015, Chairman Celaya began employment with the Town of 
Florence as the Facilities Manager.  Per Town Code, Town employees are not eligible 
for appointment to any board, commission and committee of the Town.  For that reason, 
Chairman Celaya tendered his resignation from the Arts and Culture Commission 
effective May 4, 2015. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends acceptance of Chairman Tom Celaya’s resignation from the Arts and 
Culture Commission. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resignation Letter from Chairman Tom Celaya 





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7e. 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz, Grants and Assessment  
                                     Manager/ Daniel Hughes, Police Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1520-15:  to accept grant funds  
                   awarded for the Arizona Criminal Justice  
                   Commission (ACJC) National Criminal History  
                   Improvement Program (NCHIP). 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1520-15 ACJC NCHIP Agreement  Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1520-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER 
INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE 
COMMISSION (ACJC) NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
(NCHIP). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The National Criminal History Improvement Program has offered $29,694 to the Town 
of Florence Police Department to purchase an electronic booking station, which would 
accurately and immediately process department detainees, as well as members of the 
general public requesting fingerprints for clearance cards.  Presently, the Department 
takes fingerprints by hand and submits the information on paper. This system can take 
as long as six weeks to complete, and is subject to inaccuracies. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission National Criminal History Improvement Program 
is awarding $29,694.  The Town is required to provide a 12% match ($4,084.00).  The 
match amount will be paid from Pinal County RICO funds made available to the 
Florence Police Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1520-15 to approve the grant 
agreement from the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission National Criminal History 
Improvement Program. 



Subject: Resolution No. 1520-15 ACJC NCHIP Agreement  Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1520-15 
Grant Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 1520-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH 
THE ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION (ACJC) NATIONAL 
CRIMINAL HISTORY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (NCHIP). 

 
R E C I T A L S  

 
WHEREAS, THIS GRANT-IN-AID (“Grant”) is entered into as of the  18th  day of May, 

2015, by and between the ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION (“ACJC”) 
NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (NCHIP) and The Town of 
Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, (the “TOWN”). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby acknowledged that the ACJC now has the authority to 
administer and subsequently award federal grant funds to local law enforcement agencies to 
increase their ability to ensure the safety of the general public; and 

WHEREAS, this program is administered through the ACJC; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence, through its Police Department, has expressed an 
interest in obtaining valuable equipment that can be obtained with grant funds made available 
through this program; and 

WHEREAS, ACJC has now awarded such grant funds in the amount of $29,694 to the 
TOWN for the purchase of an electronic booking station that will accurately and immediately 
process department detainees, as well as members of the general public requesting 
fingerprints for clearance cards; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to execute the agreement by formal resolution of the Mayor 
and Town Council, and that this resolution shall hereby be made a part thereof and 
incorporated into the agreement; and 

WHEREAS, ACJC is authorized to enter into this agreement pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-
2405 (B) (6). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence, Arizona, that the Town of Florence Town Council hereby authorizes the Mayor of the 
Town of Florence to execute the National Criminal History Improvement Program Grant 
Agreement with ACJC.   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the majority vote of the Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, on the 18th day of May 2015. 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  _____________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



































MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
APRIL 6, 2015, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

  
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Montaño, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 1 of 21 
 

ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for the following 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(1) for the purpose of discussion with the 
Town Manager to discuss Town’s organizational structure and the duties and 
responsibilities of the Town Manager. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session.  

 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, stated that the signage poll taken by the Florence 
Reminder had 28 responses with a majority in favor of the vertical signs for Territory 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 2 of 21 
 

Square; Library and Aquatic Center.  She stated that the petition presented to Council at 
the last meeting was signed by 70 Florence residents and visitors in favor of horizontal 
signage.  She would like this information taken into consideration when reconsidering 
the previous decision of Council regarding signage for the new buildings. 
 
Ms. Cindy Sills, Florence resident, stated that she is in favor of horizontal signage for 
Territory Square.  She stated that red-tail hawks are nested on the Florence water tower 
and their eggs should be hatching at any time.  She requested that the Town wait on 
painting the tower until the eggs have hatched and the hawks have flown away. 
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence resident, stated that she is disappointed in the amount of 
time that has been spent discussing signage for the new library and aquatic center.   
She stated that she would like the project to move forward and be completed and to see 
the signage reflect a more modern forward thinking design, such as that reflected in 
option #1 previously approved by Council. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Proclamation of the Mayor declaring April 2015 as Fair Housing Month in the 
Town of Florence. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read the proclamation for the 
record. 
 
Mayor Rankin declared April 2015 as Fair Housing Month in the Town of Florence.  
 
Proclamation of the Mayor declaring April 12-18, 2015 as Week of the Young Child 
in the Town of Florence. 
 
Ms. Garcia read the proclamation for the record.   
 
Mr. Brett Haupt, Parent Awareness and Community Outreach Coordinator, stated that in 
1962 a study of high-parent engagement was started with 123 pre-school age children.  
The purpose of the study was to identify the impact of quality early childhood 
experiences.  He stated that the study followed the children through pivotal points in 
their lives, noting that at the high school graduation level, it was difficult to differentiate 
from those who children who had received a high-parent engagement quality early 
childhood experience from those who had not.   
 
Mr. Haupt stated that at the check point, 22 years after the pre-school experience, 70% 
of those who with a high-parent engagement quality early childhood experience were 
less likely to commit a violent crime, experience childbirth out of wedlock and less likely 
to need public assistance such as AHCCCS and welfare.  He stated the same group of 
children, now in their 40’s almost 35 years after pre-school, were earning an average of 
$500 more a month.  He stated that the results of the study showed that the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 3 of 21 
 

development in the early years of young children develops their character providing 
motivation, self-esteem, focus and control. 
 
Mayor Rankin declared April 12-18, 2015 as Week of the Young Child in the Town of 
Florence and presented Mr. Haupt with the proclamation.  He encouraged everyone to 
participate in the life of a young child and possibly have the opportunity to be a positive 
influence in their life. 
 
Presentation of the Quarterly Financial Report for December 31, 2014.  
 
Mr. Michael Farina, Finance Director, stated that the quarterly report is the second 
quarter report for the current fiscal year through December 31, 2014.  He stated that the 
report presents the results of Town revenues, expenditures and fund balances including 
a comparison of current year actual figures to the budget and prior year. 
 
Mr. Farina presented the following: 

- Major Revenues 
• Sales Tax is 15% lower than budget expectations and 11% lower than the 

prior year.   
o Government construction and food sales tax are slightly ahead of plan. 
o Private construction is down $160,000 as a result of fewer residential new 

home sales as projected. 
o General sales tax for retail is lower than projected, resulting in a $124,000 

deficit. 
 Some Town vendors have not paid sales taxes for several months. The 

Town is following up with the State and the vendors on these past due 
accounts. 

• State-shared sales tax is 1% lower than budget expectations and 5% ahead 
of the prior year. 

• State-shared income tax collected was $1,545,645, which equals budget 
expectations and 9% ahead of the prior year. 

• Vehicle license tax collected was $608,107 which is 2% ahead of budget 
expectations and is 7% greater than the prior year. 

• Highway User Revenue Fund is 5% ahead of budget expectations and is 11% 
greater than the prior year. 

- General Fund 
• Primarily supported by local and State-shared taxes and is the Town’s main 

operating fund accounting for most of the Town’s services, including fire and 
police public safety, culture and recreation, community development and 
general government administration. 

• The annual budget-projected General Fund revenue, excluding transfers, is 
$12,332,800. 

• Total collected at the end of the second quarter was $6,013,121 which is 
meeting projections and is $384,490, or 7%, greater than the prior year. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 4 of 21 
 

- General Fund Expenditures 
• General Fund budget, excluding transfers, is $14,513,600. 
• Total spent was $6,193,823 or 43% of the budgeted amount and 5% greater 

than the prior year. 
- Highway user Revenue Fund 

• Accounts for operation, maintenance and capital expenditures of Town 
streets and highways (public works). 

• Revenue collected was $1,341,899 or 47% of the budget. 
o Transportation excise tax is 7% lower than budget expectation. 

• Expenditures are $716,954 or 8% of the budget. 
o $58,443 or 1% of the capital expenditure budget has been spent. 
o The Diversion Dam road improvements project will be starting soon which 

is budgeted at $2 million. 
- Capital Improvement Fund 

• Supported primarily by construction-related sales tax where $612,309 or 39% 
of the budget has been collected. This is 19% lower than the prior year. 

• Expenditures are 17% of budget or $3,528,898. The second half of the      
year will show greater expenditures as the new Library and Aquatic Center      
are under construction at this time and has only had 10% expensed. 

- Utility Funds 
• Water Utility Fund has collected 39% of the budgeted revenue with 
 expenses on budget. 
• Wastewater Utility Fund has collected 31% of the budgeted revenue with 

expenses on a budget. 
  

Mr. Farina stated that the full report will be placed on the Town’s website. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to when the completion deadline is for capital 
improvements with regards to the expenditure limitations the Town will be experiencing 
next fiscal year.  
 
Mr. Farina stated that all capital improvement projects must be completed by June 30, 
2015; otherwise the carryover cost will count against the Town in regards to the 
expenditure limitations that Home Rule will be imposing starting July 1, 2015. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if the projects are on schedule to be completed by 
June 30, 2015; and if not, what is the plan in get the projects completed by June 30, 
2015. 
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that fields and aquatic center will be 
completed on time.  He stated that the library is behind schedule due to weather related 
issues.  The contractor is working diligently to get caught up but will not know if the June 
30, 2015, deadline will be met until the masonry work is completed.  He stated that if a 
project cannot meet the deadline, staff will bring back options to Council based on the 
situation. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 5 of 21 
 

 
Mayor Rankin stated that most of the revenue sources are down 15% to 20% and 
inquired what the plan is for the remainder of the fiscal year and next fiscal year. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that he is being conservative for the next fiscal year based on current 
figures.  He does believe the delinquent taxes will be collected before the end of the 
fiscal year. 
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1505-15:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1505-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
CITY OF TUCSON POLICE DEPARTMENT REGARDING THE ARIZONA HIGH 
INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA. 

 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1506-15:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1506-15 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAYS FROM THE 
ARIZONA STATE LAND DEPARTMENT FOR THE EXTENSION OF MERRILL 
RANCH PARKWAY AND FRANKLIN ROAD AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY 
THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  

 
Approval of an exclusive traffic signal easement between the Town of Florence 
and Southwest Value Partners (SWV-PTE, LLC). 

 
Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and 
Control for the Pinal County Historical Society Museum’s application for a Special 
Event Liquor License for a fundraiser to be held on May 23, 2015, at the Pinal 
County Historical Society Museum. 

 
Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control on the Arizona Parks and Recreation Fellowship’s application for the 
Cinco de Mayo event on May 2, 2015 at Padilla Park. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 6 of 21 
 

Approval of accepting the register of demands ending February 28, 2015, in the 
amount of $3,579,973.31. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of item 9a.  
 
9a. Adoption of Resolution No. 1505-15: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER 
INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUCSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
REGARDING THE ARIZONA HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to which calendar year the expense for this 
agreement would be experienced. 
 
Mr. Ernie Feliz, Grants Manager, stated that historically the funds for this program have 
been used within the first year. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the funds are in form of a grant which means they are not 
impacted by the expenditure limitations. 
 
Councilmember Montoya inquired who is funding the grant. 
 
Mr. Feliz stated that the money for the grant comes from the High Intensity Drug 
Trafficking Area fund. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired how the funding time-frame works, as the grant states 
January 2015 through December 2016.  She also inquired what the financial plan will be 
regarding the position if the funding becomes unavailable. 
 
Mr. Feliz stated that the Town has submitted for funding annually and has successfully 
received full funding each year; however, if for some reason the Town should not 
receive funding one year and ran out of funds, the officer would be absorbed back into 
the Police Department budget. 
 
Mr. Daniel Hughes, Police Chief, stated that the Town of Florence is the last community 
that still receives full funding for this program.  He stated that the Town has an officer 
assigned to the task force and in return the task force comes to Florence and works the 
cases, giving the Town a resource at no expense.  He stated if the funds would become 
unavailable, the officer’s position is being budgeted for and would be re-absorbed back 
into the department. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to authorize the Town to enter into a grant agreement with the City of Tucson 
Police Department regarding the Arizona High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 7 of 21 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 626-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING TITLE III OF THE TOWN CODE ENTITLED ADMINISTRATION: 
SECTION 30.23 SPECIAL MEETINGS, AND SECTION 30.25 ORDER OF BUSINESS 
EFFECTIVE MAY 1, 2015.  (First reading on March 16, 2015) 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the ordinance has been previously reviewed by Council.  

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 626-15.  
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 628-15 by title only. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA 
AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 32: TOWN ORGANIZATIONS.  (First reading 
on March 16, 2015) 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the ordinance has been previously reviewed by Council. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 628-15.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a change order with DBA Construction Inc., 
in an amount not to exceed $113,752.77. 
 
Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated that the change order is in line with the 
discussion that took place during the modification of contract with Apache Underground 
and Excavation, where the Town, instead of Apache Underground, would complete the 
paving and installation of speed humps after the new waterline was installed.  He stated 
that the requested change order with DBA Construction Inc., will allow the paving 
portion of the project to be completed. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to approve a change order with DBA Construction Inc., in an amount not to 
exceed $113,752.77. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award the Cuen Building Auction with and 
instruct the Town Manager file a deed to include restrictions as outlined in the 
request for bids.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 8 of 21 
 

Ms. Garcia stated, as instructed, Town staff held a third auction for the Cuen Building, 
lowering the minimum bid to $1,000 with deed restrictions. 
 
Three bids were received from the following: 
 Florence Heritage Fund   $1,550 
 Stephen T. Smallidge/Happy Adobe $2,500 
 Wayne Hatch, HCH Development  $1,100 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the bid documents stated that the award of the property would go 
to the highest bidder, and acknowledges that Council reserved the right to reject any 
and all bids.  She stated that Council will make a decision after speaking with all bidders 
regarding the deed restrictions. 
 
Mayor Rankin asked how Council would like to proceed, speak with each individual 
bidder tonight or at a later time. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter asked that they speak with each bidder this evening starting with the 
highest bidder. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, provided Council with a brief 
reminder of the previously estimated costs and structural needs of the Cuen Building as 
provided by engineers.  
 
Mayor Rankin asked Mr. Stephen Smallidge to speak with Council first. 
 
Mr. Stephen Smallidge, Florence resident and owner of Happy Adobe, stated that he is 
in the process of relocating his business to a location on Main Street.  He stated that the 
Cuen Building had been in his vision for a while and he is looking forward to having an 
opportunity to restore the building and to place a tax-based business back into the 
building.  He was a general contractor for 20 years in Alabama and Florida and left the 
industry four years ago when he moved to Florence.  He stated that the building has 
stood for 100 years and deserved to be a vital part of the community for another 100 
years. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how Mr. Smallidge would be completing the stabilization portion 
of the building. 
 
Mr. Smallidge stated that he would be completing a majority of the structural work 
himself, hiring professional services for electrical and plumbing needs.  He stated he 
has engineering experience and believes the building is not as unstable as presumed to 
be.  He stated that financially he will be able to fully complete the project himself without 
any grants or outside funding. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Mr. Smallidge has worked with any historical restoration 
projects. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 9 of 21 
 

 
Mr. Smallidge stated that has worked with restoration of older and historical homes in 
the Alabama and Florida areas.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how long Mr. Smallidge believes it will take him to 
complete the project. 
 
Mr. Smallidge stated that he will have the walls stabilized and painted in 60 days. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the Town is requiring a commercial contractor for 
the project. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the building is a commercial building and would require a 
commercial contractor to pull a permit per the Arizona State Board of Contractors.  He 
stated that the building will have extensive modifications to it.  In order for the building to 
maintain its status as a certified local government historical district, the plans would be 
to be reviewed with the Historic District Advisory Commission.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the bidders were advised of the restoration 
processes and requirements which includes working with the Historic District and use of 
a commercial contractor. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the bid did state that the successful bidder would be required to 
complete all state requirements as well as work closely with the Historic District 
Advisory Commission. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired who will be making the determination that the 
stabilization is completed correctly.  He also inquired if it will be the owner, the Town or 
the State who makes the determination that it is stabilized correctly.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the owner’s architect will provide plans to the Town who will 
approve them; and then a licensed commercial contractor will ensure the work is 
completed, per the approved plans. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he is concerned that the process could be slowed 
down based on the submittal and approval process to determine if the stabilization 
process being presented is correct.  
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Community Development Department will do whatever it can 
to expedite the review process for the Town and with the Historical District.  He stated it 
is a small building and the immediate need is to stabilize the walls and reroof the 
building.  He stated the winning bidder will need to put in place their team who will 
complete the work and have an architect submit the stabilization plans as soon as 
possible. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 10 of 21 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that per the bidding documents, the winning bidder will have 100 days 
from the day the deed is signed to stabilize the building and Council had an automatic 
30 day extension included, if needed, past the 100 days.  She stated that it will take 
some time to get the deed drawn up and executed which will provide the winning bidder 
more opportunity to get the plans drawn up and into Community Development. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if Mr. Smallidge is still interested in the building based 
on the information reiterated this evening. 
 
Mr. Smallidge stated that he is still interested in the building but he is not interested in 
the semantics.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if it is the State of Arizona that requires a license 
engineer and contractor to be used for this type of project. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that residential project can be done by whomever the owner chooses 
but for commercial projects, it is required by the State to use a commercial contractor. 
 
Mr. Smallidge stated that he will do what needs to be done, per Town and State 
requirements, to complete the project. 
 
Mayor Rankin called the Florence Heritage Foundation to come forward and speak with 
Council. 
 
Mr. Gem Cox, President of the Florence Heritage Foundation, stated that they 
submitted their bid in at the last Council meeting and are excited to see that there are 
three bidders.  He stated that he is concerned that the restoration project cannot be 
completed without grants and outside funding as the building is small and the funds it 
will take to complete the project to a useable condition will never be recouped.  He 
stated that the project will truly be a labor of love. 
 
He stated that the Foundation is a non-profit and has a plan to raise the funds needed 
to complete the project and to meet the timelines, as stated in the bid documents.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how the Foundation will obtain the funds. 
 
Mr. Cox stated that the Foundation will be working with private citizens through grass-
roots programs. There will be larger donation along with several engineering and 
architectural firms that have softly committed to assist in the stabilization.  The 
Foundation has also identified commercial trades that have offered their services at a 
discounted rate.  He stated there is quite a bit of work that needs to be done that is not 
visible to the naked eye. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Foundation is aware of the requirements of the Historic 
District and is committed to the process that is required. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 11 of 21 
 

 
Mr. Cox stated that the Foundation is aware of the requirements and is prepared to 
follow the process as stated in the bid packet.  The Foundation is familiar with working 
with restoration projects and he personally has experience working with restoration 
projects.  He stated that the Foundation will be hiring local talent and local contractors to 
complete the project. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what local restoration projects have the Foundation or Mr. Cox 
worked on. 
 
Mr. Cox stated that he has worked on the restoration on the Murphy’s Romance building 
which currently houses State Farm Insurance, the coin laundry building and is currently 
working with the old grocery store building.  He stated that there are several old adobe 
homes in Town that himself or his family have purchased and restored. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the Foundation believes their timeline would be for the 
project. 
 
Mr. Cox stated they are committed to completing all phases of the project within the 
timelines outlined in the bid packet. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the Foundation will do with the building once it is 
completed. 
 
Mr. Cox stated that the Foundation has been approached from several different types of 
businesses but it will be up to the Foundation Board to determine what they believe the 
best use of the building will be. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge inquired what funding the Foundation has immediately to 
start the process. 
 
Mr. Cox stated that the Foundation has $2,500 to weatherproof the building, clean it up 
and ensure the building does not leak. 
 
Mayor Rankin called Mr. Wayne Hatch to come forward and speak with Council. 
 
Mr. Wayne Hatch, Owner of HCH Development and Low Mountain Construction, stated 
that he and his partner submitted a bid as a way to give back to the Town in 
appreciation for selecting them as the builder of the new library and aquatic center in 
Territory Square.  He stated that they will be able to meet all timelines noted in the bid 
packet; they will be funding the project themselves utilizing sub-contractors who are 
already working in town on Territory Square and other local tradesmen.  He stated they 
will be working with Jeff Swan with Swan Architects who will be submitting the plans 
and pulling all permits, as required.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 12 of 21 
 

Mr. Hatch stated that their objective is to not have ownership of the building; but provide 
the Town with with a historical building and to work with a local business who would like 
to own the building, working with them to eventually own the building through purchase 
or a lease-to-own situation.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if they would be able to complete the project within the initial 100 
day requirement. 
 
Mr. Hatch stated that if they are awarded the building, they will immediately work with 
Swan Architects to submit plans while the deed is being prepared.  Once the deed is 
executed, they will stabilize the building exceeding all expectation of the initial 100 day 
criteria.  He stated the goal will then be to complete the restoration and have it occupied 
by a local business. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that she would like to have the Town Attorney speak to Council prior 
to Council making their decision; reminding everyone of the deed restriction should the 
project not be completed per the time requirements and what action will be taken. 
 
Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that if the timelines stated in the bid packet 
are not met; 100 days to stabilize the building and fully complete restoration within two 
years, through the Town’s proper and legal procedures, the deed will automatically 
revert back to the Town including all improvements that have been completed.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he believes HCH Development would be the best candidate to 
complete the project based on the nature of the project with the deed restrictions and 
timelines that will be in place.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she agreed with Mayor Rankin but would like to 
add that she loves Mr. Smallidge’s passion for the building and would like to see HCH 
Development and Mr. Smallidge work together if possible. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated it would be a win-win situation if Mr. Smallidge and 
HCH Development worked together. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he would like to thank the Florence Heritage 
Foundation for coming forward at the last meeting with their bid to try and save the 
building.  He stated that the bid stated that the building would be awarded to the highest 
bidder, which is Mr. Smallidge, and he has proven his ability to complete the project and 
his commitment to Florence with his current business.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter agreed with Councilmember Montaño’s comments and encouraged 
HCH Development to work with Mr. Smallidge if he is awarded the bid. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 13 of 21 
 

Mr. Hatch stated that they are committed to assisting the Town in the restoration of the 
Cuen building and would be open to assisting the winning bidder if they so desired their 
help. 
 
Councilmember Anderson extended his appreciation and gratitude to Mr. Cox for 
keeping the Cuen building alive and bringing it back to the bid process with success. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, to award the 
Cuen Building to the highest bidder, Stephen T. Smallidge, Happy Adobe with a bid of 
$2,500 and to instruct the Town Manager to file a deed to include restrictions as 
outlined in the request for bids. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the financial difference between the highest bidder and the 
lowest bidder is not that much and encourages Council to look at whole project 
including the financial ability, depth of contractors and tradesmen, and professional 
services to complete the job within the timeline required by the deed restriction. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge inquired if Mr. Hatch would give Mr. Smallidge first right of 
refusal to run a business out the building once the project is completed. 
 
Mr. Hatch stated that they would be willing to give Mr. Smallidge first right of refusal. 
 
Councilmember Anderson called for the question. 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter - Yes 
Councilmember Guilin - Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins – No 
Councilmember Woolridge – No 
Councilmember Anderson - Yes 
Councilmember Montaño - Yes 
Mayor Rankin – No 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 4; No: 3 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract to Pima Paving, Inc., for 
improvements to the Police Department and Senior Center parking lot, in an 
amount not to exceed $185,989.64. 
 
Mr. John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated that the project will improve the parking lot 
of the Police Department and the Florence Senior Center, providing for 22 paved and 
striped parking stalls, shade canopy and security lighting.  He stated that the project will 
also create a retention basin for storm drainage and relocation of the trash enclosure for 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 14 of 21 
 

both buildings, and installation of parking bumper curbs for the Senior Center parking lot 
to enhance traffic safety. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that funding for the project is in the current fiscal budget for $120,000 
with the remaining funds coming from deferred projects for the Police Station 
improvements. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired which project is more important, the parking lot or the station 
improvements. 
 
Mr. Daniel Hughes, Police Chief, stated that the parking lot is a project that needs to be 
completed as soon as possible for the safety of the police vehicles and the equipment 
inside the vehicles. 
 
Mr. Carroll Michael, Facility Maintenance Manager, stated that the current drainage 
conditions of the parking area for the police vehicles is not draining correctly and is 
undermining the parking service. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he was concerned with the funding plan for the project and 
inquired which projects are being deferred. 
 
Mr. Michael stated that the additional funds needed for this project are coming from 
projects that have been completed this year and have a surplus such as the fire 
sprinkler installation at Fire Station 1 and electrical upgrades at the Silver King. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there were additional surplus funds that can be reallocated to 
the Police Station project. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that there are additional capital improvement funds; however, when 
a project comes in under budget, those funds are used to complete projects that are 
under way and may need additional funding for unforeseen needs. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she was glad to see this project coming to fruition. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to award a contract to Pima Paving, Inc., for improvements to the Police 
Department and Senior Center parking lot, in an amount not to exceed $185,989.64. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a Contract to Arizona Coating 
Applicators for painting of the Florence water tower and tank, in an amount not to 
exceed $130,000.00. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the project is for repainting of the Florence water tower and tank, 
which consists of removal or encapsulation of the current lead based paint using OSHA 
and EPA approved methods and guidelines and disposal at an EPA approved site.  He 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 15 of 21 
 

stated that once the lead based paint is removed or encapsulated, the tower, tank and 
lettering will be repainted. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the current budget provides for $75,000 with the remaining funds 
coming from savings realized from completed capital projects.  
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired what the process will be now that there are nesting 
hawks on the tower. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the authorities will be contacted and the Town will work with 
them to ensure the project does not hinder the hawks. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to award a contract to Arizona Coating Applicators for painting the Florence 
water tower and tank, in an amount not to exceed $130,000. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to issue a purchase order to Ace Asphalt to 
perform parking lot maintenance and repairs using the Mohave Educational 
Services Co-Op Bid, Contract Number 10A-ACE-0316, in an amount not to exceed 
$182,642.03.  
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that several of the Town’s 
parking lots at parks and facilities are in various stages of deterioration, including failing 
asphalt and fading stripes.  He stated due to years of deferred maintenance, many 
parking lots lack striping, have cracks and potholes.  He stated that in addition to being 
aesthetically unpleasing, rough surface and cracks can be a safety hazard. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that the project will repair the parking lots, utilizing paving and/or 
slurry seal, dependent upon the degree of deterioration to the following lots: 

• Arriola Square 
• Brunenkant Building 
• Heritage Park 
• High Profile/RV Parking 
• Jaques Square 
• Senior Center 
• Town Hall 

 
Mr. Hughes stated that the project will assist in providing additional parking spaces to 
the downtown area, providing 11 new accessible parking stalls, increasing the overall 
number of accessible spaces in Town-owned parking lots to 16 in the historic downtown 
area.  He stated that this project was not budgeted for in the current fiscal year and that 
funding will be reallocated from other projects that have been deferred or cancelled, 
specifically funding allocated for providing services in the annexation areas. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 16 of 21 
 

Councilmember Montaño stated that it is important to look at the first impression the 
Town is giving to its visitors, and secondly, the increase of parking stalls and 
accessibility of ADA designated stalls.  He stated that he would like to see a Wounded 
Warier project started in Florence which designates parking stalls for our veterans. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that certainly could be done by the use of signage. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if there are any utilities under the parking lots. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that he is not aware of any underground utility lines in the areas that 
are proposed in this project. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the paving projects that are on the agenda this evening can be 
combined and provide a saving to the Town. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the project for the Police parking lot requires specific 
engineering and has totally separate and different requirements for completion whereas 
the parking lot paving project that is being reviewed currently is strictly that, paving and 
stripping, requiring a different course of work. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
approve a purchase order to Ace Asphalt, to perform parking lot maintenance and 
repairs using the Mohave Educational Services Co-Op Bid, contact number 10A-ACE-
0316, in an amount not to exceed $182,642.03. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to allow Town staff to work with the Windmill 
Winery and the Florence Future Foundation to help facilitate future landscape 
enhancement projects in Florence; to allow for the acceptance of donations of 
plant materials and/or services from said entities; and to allow the Town Manager 
to enter into any agreements necessary to facilitate partnerships and future 
landscape enhancement projects in Florence. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that The Future Forward 
Foundation and the Windmill Winery would like to partner with the Town of Florence to 
provide landscaping enhancements throughout the community.  He stated that the 
Windmill Winery has offered to donate plants from their nursery and the Future Forward 
Foundation has proposed to donate locally grown plants and the services of volunteers 
to assist with the planting projects. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated several projects have been identified and discussed.  Florence 
Future Foundation has an interest in adding locally grown low water usage plants and 
Desert Willow trees, to the downtown roadways that have excess unused right-of-ways. 
He stated that the Windmill Winery is primarily focused on adding landscape along the 
new Main Street extension and landscape enhancements along West Butte Avenue.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 17 of 21 
 

Mr. Eckhoff stated that if the Town should proceed with these projects, this initiative will 
take a collaborative approach of various Town departments and private parties.  He 
stated that additional discussions would need to occur to agree upon ideal project 
areas, identify necessary water infrastructure, address possible conflicts with right-of-
ways and easements, define how plants will be maintained, and to ensure community 
support for neighborhood planting projects.  He stated that the Florence Future 
Foundation may concurrently continue to work with private property owners to install 
plants on their property. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that though this initiative will have a significant reliance upon donated 
plants and services, Town funds will be necessary to support this effort.  He stated that 
staff is requesting a maximum of $25,000 be set aside on an annual basis to cover 
costs associated with possible survey work, assistance with plantings and for irrigation 
systems. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he did not believe it was proper for the Town to get involved 
with planting projects on private property. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town would not be participating with any private property 
projects but with the right-of-ways and easements. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what the funds would be used for. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the funds would be used for assistance with the planting efforts, 
installation and maintenance of the irrigation that the plants will need. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
allow Town staff to work with the Windmill Winery and the Florence Future Foundation 
to help facilitate future landscape enhancement projects in Florence; to allow for the 
acceptance of donations of plant materials and/or services from said entities; and to 
allow the Town Manager to enter into any agreements necessary to facilitate 
partnerships and future landscape enhancement projects in Florence. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the motion to rescind or amend the March 2, 
2015 approval of the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
for Option #1 of Territory Square Signage. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia stated that staff received requests from three members of Council to 
place the item on the April 6, 2015 meeting.  She stated that to request a motion to be 
reconsidered, the motion must be moved by a member who voted with the 
majority/prevailing side at the March 2, 2015 Council meeting; and can be seconded by 
any member; requiring a majority vote to adopt. She stated that these are the 
requirements in the Town’s Rules of Procedure and Robert’s Rules of Order. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 18 of 21 
 

She stated the motion to reconsider is not an option as the next available meeting has 
passed.  She stated that an option that is not in the Town’s Rule of Procedure but 
allowed under Robert’s Rules is a motion to rescind and amend something previously 
adopted. She stated that there will be additional electrical and lighting costs associated 
with a change to the signs, if passed.  She stated that staff has placed a motion to 
rescind on the agenda and if the procedural motion passes, then the sign package item 
will be the next agenda item. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that it is her understanding that the cost to change the 
direction of the signs would be an additional $1,000. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the cost to move the J-boxes for the signs would be $750.00. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she supports the decision of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission as the decision is not about education or reading but an expression of 
artist manner of providing signage, diversity and an interpretation of a visual effect. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that this issue has been reviewed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and twice by the Council.  He stated that he believes the recommendation 
by the Commission for Option #1 is the right way to go. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, to rescind the 
March 2, 2015 approval of the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for Option #1 of Territory Square signage. 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Councilmember Anderson - Yes 
Vice-Mayor Walter - Yes 
Councilmember Montaño - Yes 
Councilmember Guilin - No 
Councilmember Hawkins - Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge - No 
Mayor Rankin – No 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 4; No: 3 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Florence Territory Square Signage 
Design Review application. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Option #1 sign orientation is vertical and Option #3 has a 
horizontal orientation. He stated that both options would work appropriately for the 
project. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 19 of 21 
 

Councilmember Hawkins state that he supports the 70 people who signed the petition 
supporting a horizontal orientation and has not heard from anyone wanted the vertical 
orientation.  He stated that those who have spoken with him and the unofficial petition 
are the majority, and he was elected to support the majority.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she agreed with Councilmember Hawkins. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the youth of our community will be accompanied by adults 
who can read the signs for them and that he has looked at signage throughout the Town 
which included signs that are vertical.  He stated that Option #1 is progressive and 
provides the Town with a forward thinking design for the next generation of Florence 
moving the Town out of the past. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she liked Option #1 sign but actually liked Option 
#2 better as it was a nice mix of the other two options but would respect all decisions 
and thoughts and supports the majority. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, to move 
forward with Option #3 for the Territory Square signage. 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Councilmember Montaño - Yes 
Vice-Mayor Walter - Yes 
Councilmember Anderson - Yes 
Councilmember Guilin - No 
Councilmember Hawkins - Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge - No 
Mayor Rankin – No 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 4; No: 3 

 
DEPARTMENT REPORT 

Manager’s Report 
Department Reports 

Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
Utilities 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 20 of 21 
 

Councilmember Anderson requested a future meeting with the IDA. 
 
The department reports were received and filed.  

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence resident, stated that she was not happy with the change in 
the sign option based on an unofficial petition.  She stated that Option #1 signage was 
artistically different and unusual and would have liked to have seen the Town move 
forward with this design. 
 
Mr. Bruce Fenstermaker, Florence resident and member of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, stated that he appreciated the Council’s involvement in reconsidering their 
previous action on the signage.  He thanked the Parks and Recreation Department for 
the Road to Country Thunder event as it was very enjoyable.  He thanked Council and 
staff for coming out to Anthem and explaining the Special Election and he felt the 
presentation was very well done. 
 
Ms. Tracy Adam, Florence resident, stated that she is very proud of how the Town has 
handled the Cuen Building situation and applauds Council on their actions. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he is pleased to see Council work together with 
respect to ensure the issues are resolved in a proper manner. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the Road to Country Thunder was good with a 
smaller crowd in the early hours but towards the end was well attended and believes 
that event will continue to grow and be a great event for the Town.  He encouraged all 
those attending Country Thunder to be safe. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that Ship Omega made a great presentation at the 
Florence Historical Society. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he thought the Road to Country Thunder event 
was great and well attended for the first year. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that Town staff did an excellent job cleaning up after 
the Road to Country Thunder event. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2105 
Page 21 of 21 
 

Vice-Mayor Walter thanked Parks and Recreation staff for their hard work to bring the 
Road to Country Thunder event to Town.  She stated that there will be a Special 
Election meeting on April 15, 2015 at Anthem and encouraged everyone to attend. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Road to Country Thunder was great and Ms. Alison Feliz 
did an excellent job.  He stated that democracy means something different for everyone 
and he believes that items that were voted on this evening were in the best interest of 
the Town and even though he is not in favor of some of the decisions, he will support 
the decision as that is what the majority of the Council decided.  He stated that all 
members of Town need to come together and vote during the Special Election and 
encouraged all citizens who need more information regarding the Special Election to 
attend the meeting at Anthem Parkside on April 15, 2015 at 7:00 pm and to obtain 
accurate information. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:56 pm.  
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on April 6, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
APRIL 20, 2015, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Montaño, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for legal matters 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for the purpose of discussion 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 11 
 
 

and consultation with the Town’s attorneys for legal advice and to consider the 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to a claim involving Johnson 
Utilities. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 11 
 
 

Public hearing on an application received from Jeffrey P. Erickson, The River 
Bottom Grill, located at 2501 N. Highway 79, Florence, Arizona, for a personal 
transfer of  a new Type 6 Liquor License, and for Council recommendation for 
approval or disapproval of said license.  
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There being no comments, Mayor Rankin 
closed the public hearing. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño and 
carried to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor 
Licenses and Control on the application received from Jeffrey P. Erickson, The River 
Bottom Grill, located at 2501 N. Highway 79, Florence, Arizona, for a personal transfer 
of a new Type 6 Liquor License. 

 
Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing Big 
Quick’s BBQ as the Business of the Month. 
 
Mr. Jim Gilloon, Office Manager, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, recognized 
Big Quick’s BBQ as the business of the month for April, 2015.  He stated that Big 
Quick’s BBQ is being recognized for their outstanding contributions to the Town going 
above and beyond feeding the Florence High School football team, coaches and 
cheerleaders during the ten week season. 
 
Ms. Lisa Witten, owner of Big Quick’s BBQ, accepted the award and stated that she 
appreciates the Town’s support during her first year in business and that it has been a 
pleasure working with the various organizations, businesses and the Greater Florence 
Chamber of Commerce. 

 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Approval of Task Order No. 3 with EPS Group, Inc., for construction phase 

services for the Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project, in an amount 
not to exceed $43,240. 

 
b. Approval of Task Order No. 4 with EPS Group, Inc., for construction phase 

services for the Diversion Dam Road improvements, in an amount not to 
exceed $99,250.   
 

c. Acceptance of public infrastructure for maintenance within the dedicated 
rights-of-way for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Units 9, 22A and 22B. 
 

d. Acceptance of Katherine Kaiser’s resignation for retirement as Town 
Magistrate, effective June 30, 2015.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 3 of 11 
 
 

 
e. Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License 

and Control for the Florence Lions Club’s application for a Special Event 
Liquor License for a fundraiser to be held on April 26, 2015, at the 
McFarland State Park.  
 

f. Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License 
and Control for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s application 
for a Special Event Liquor License for their First Thursday event to be held 
on May 7, 2015, at the Chamber of Commerce facility.  
 

g. Ratification of emergency repair work on Well #1, completed by Coolidge 
Engine and Pump, LLC, in the amount of $54,500.59. 
 

h. Resolution No. 1507-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1507-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR MERRILL RANCH UNIT 53; REQUIRING 
THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR 
WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY 
THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
i. Resolution No. 1508-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1508-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 36; 
REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT 
ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE 
SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY 
THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
j. Resolution  No. 1509-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1509-15 by title only.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 4 of 11 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR CONSTITUTION WAY PHASE 2 
AND NATIONAL WAY, REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO 
SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND 
DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE 
FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 

 
k. Resolution No. 1510-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1510-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR SPIRIT LOOP PHASE 4, 
REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT 
ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE 
SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY 
THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 

 
l. Resolution  No. 1511-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1511-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 36-42 INCLUSIVE AND TRACT A, 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH PHASE 1A, UNIT 15; REQUIRING THE 
PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR 
WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY 
THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
m. Resolution No. 1512-15:  
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1512-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED 
OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH JOHNSON UTILITIES, LLC, FOR WATER AND 
WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICES. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 5 of 11 
 
 

n. Resolution No. 1513-15:  
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1513-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED 
OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHWEST ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES, 
LLC, FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICES. 

 
o. Resolution No. 1517-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1517-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM THE 
FLORENCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE WIDENING OF 
ADAMSVILLE ROAD AND RATIFYING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  

 
p. Resolution No. 1518-15:   
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1518-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A REORGANIZATION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES 
DEPARTMENTS, CREATING A NEW TOWN ENGINEER DEPARTMENT, AND 
ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE POSITION 
CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 

 
q. Resolution No. 1519-15:  
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1519-15 by title only.  
 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO RATIFY THE STATE FORESTER’S 
COOPERATIVE FIRE RATE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENTS. 
 
r. Appointment of Linda Fenstermaker to the Parks and Recreation Advisory 

Board with a term to expire December 31, 2017. 
 

s. Approval of the March 2, March 16, and March 26, 2015 Town Council 
minutes. 

 
t. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. March 12, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 6 of 11 
 
 

ii. January 28, 2015 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
iii. February 18, 2015 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board minutes. 
iv. January 15 and February 5, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission 

minutes. 
 

Mr. Charles A. Montoya stated that items 9h. through 9l. are being removed by the 
Town Manager and will be placed on a future agenda. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of items 9h through 9l that 
will be reviewed at a future meeting. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1514-15: 
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1514-15 by title only. 
  
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE 
SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE 
BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE – CAMELBACK CAMPUS PROJECT), 
SERIES 2015B, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$6,700,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, 
IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY 
OF MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE, INC. 

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that this item along with the next item 
on the agenda are connected and would be discussed together.  She stated that the 
IDA was approached by the Academy of Mathematics and Science to issue, through the 
IDA, up to $6,700,000 of bonds for the acquisition, construction, renovation, 
improvements and equipment of the land and buildings at their Camelback Road 
location in Phoenix, Arizona, for use as a charter school. 

Ms. Evans stated that the Academy of Mathematics and Science Affiliated Network is 
made up of three non-profit organizations that operate two charter schools in Tucson, 
one charter school in Phoenix, and plans to open a second charter school, the 
Camelback Campus, in Phoenix, in the fall of 2015.  

Ms. Evans stated that there is no liability incurred by the Town of Florence in granting its 
approval for the bonds and if this resolution is passed, the Florence IDA will receive a 
$3,000 application fee and a yearly administrative fee of seven basis points of the 
outstanding balance of the issue for the life of the bonds.  She stated that Mr. Bill 
Wilder, Council for the IDA, is present and available to answer any questions Council 
might have regarding the issuing of bonds and Mr. Kim Chayka, Director of Program 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 7 of 11 
 
 

Development, Academy of Mathematics and Science, can answer any questions 
regarding the school. 

On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to approve the issuance of one or more series of the Industrial Development 
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. Tax-Exempt and/or Taxable Education Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015B, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6,700,000 to 
finance the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipping of 
educational facilities for Academy of Mathematics and Science, Inc. Camelback 
Campus Project. 
 
Resolution No. 1515-15: 
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1515-15 by title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE 
SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE 
BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE – FLOWER CAMPUS PROJECT), 
SERIES 2015A, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$6,700,000 TO FINANCE AND REFINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES 
FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE SOUTH, INC. 

On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to approve the issuance of one or more series of the Industrial Development 
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. Tax-Exempt and/or Taxable Education Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015B, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6,700,000 to 
finance the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipping of 
educational facilities for Academy of Mathematics and Science, Inc. Flower Campus 
Project. 

Mr. Wilder stated that he appreciated Council’s adoption of the bond resolutions 
regarding the Academy of Mathematics and Science, Inc. 
 
Ratification of work performed by Arizona Beeman Drilling, for drilling of Well #2, 
in an amount not to exceed $434,745. 
 
Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated that the drilling of Well #2 was planned to be 
completed, but with the uncertainty of Well #1 which was authorized for repairs at the 
previous Council meeting, administrative staff directed Arizona Beeman Drilling to move 
forward and drill Well #2.  He stated that Well #1 work has been completed providing 
the Town with a well.  He stated that Well #2 was a planned well, providing capacity to 
our residents north of the Gila River and is asking Council for ratification of this action. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired how deep the well is. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 8 of 11 
 
 

 
Mr. Mitchell stated that Well #1 is 542 feet deep and it is anticipated that Well #2 will be 
the same depth. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
ratify the work performed by Arizona Beeman Drilling, for the emergency drilling of Well 
#2, in an amount not to exceed $434,745. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract to Visus Inc., for the 
construction of the Main Street Extension Project, in an amount not to exceed 
$239,000. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that this is the section of Main Street that will run from Territory 
Square north to intersect with Highway 79.  He stated the project had six companies 
submit bids ranging from a low of $239,000 to a high of $289,000.  Visus Inc. was the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder with the bid of $239,000. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if the work included curbing and sidewalks. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the project does not include curbing and sidewalks as this 
roadway is classified as a temporary emergency roadway tying the downtown core of 
Florence to Highway 79.  He stated that the road will go away when the master plan for 
Territory Square is put in place. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to award a contract to Visus Inc., for the construction of the Main Street Extension 
Project, in an amount not to exceed $239,000. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract to McCain Construction, for 
construction of the Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project, in an amount 
not to exceed $683,549. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that this is a budgeted CIP project slated for construction in the 
May/June time frame to minimize disruption to winter visitors.  He stated that the project 
has been designed to enhance water supply and availability to downtown Florence by 
providing a direct line between the new Well #4 to the Well #5 reservoir. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that 13 companies bid the project which ranged from a low of 
$539,296.66 to a high of $940,614.15. The apparent lowest bidder, Tee Pee 
Construction requested that their bid be pulled due to costs omitted from their bid.  He 
stated the next lowest bidder was McCain Construction, with a bid of $683,549 and has 
been determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 9 of 11 
 
 

On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to award a contract to McCain Construction, for construction of the Well #4 and 
Well#5 Transmission Main Project, in an amount not to exceed $683, 549. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Bruce Fenstermaker, Florence resident and member of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, stated that he is concerned with the level of publication of Town issues 
within the Anthem Community.  He stated that there are tools in place within the 
community to provide the members with information regarding outside businesses and 
events and was surprised that the HOA would not allow the Town to post information on 
these bulletin boards.  He stated that he spoke with leaders of the HOA and was told 
that the rules and regulations of the HOA trump Town rules.  He stated that he believes 
the HOA should have to submit to the Town for any signs that are placed in the right-of-
ways in the community.  He stated that he has requested from Community Development 
to see any agreements with the HOA showing agreement regarding the right-of-ways 
usage and had provided Council with a packet of the information regarding this topic. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, stated that she would like to remind the Town that 
Earth Day is April 22, 2015 and Arbor Day is the last Friday in April.  She stated that she 
is concerned that there was no mention of these events in the meeting and hopes the 
Town will be honoring these days. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that his letter that was recently printed by the Florence 
Reminder was a letter from himself, not as a member of Council. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that the Florence High School held their Spring Prom 
and Spring Court Champion Night honoring previous sport champions from prior years. 
He also stated that Country Thunder was awarded Festival of the Year from the 
Academy of Country Music and is great to have the Town associated with a nationally 
recognized event. 
 
Councilmember Guilin expressed her appreciation of having her letter to the editor 
published in the Florence Reminder and hoped the information was read by those who 
have not been able to attend the informational meetings that have been held throughout 
the Town. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins thanked Councilmember Anderson and Councilmember Guilin 
for taking the time to write letters to the editor and thought the letters were well written 
and informative. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 10 of 11 
 
 

Councilmember Woolridge encouraged participation in the upcoming special election, 
stressing the need to have everyone vote to ensure the Town can maintain its current 
service levels. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that the special election is for Proposition 407, which is 
regarding the spending level the voters will allow the Town to have in the next fiscal 
year.  The proposition does not raise taxes but will allow the Town to spend the money 
it collects if it receives a favorable vote.  She stated that Council would like to hear from 
the public regarding the business of the Town and seeks input, positive or constructive; 
to ensure business is being conducted as the members believe it should. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he believes the special election coming up on May 19, 2015, 
is one of the most important elections the Town has had in many years and encouraged 
everyone to vote. 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for legal matters 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(1) for the purpose of reviewing Town 
Attorney applications.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2015 
Page 11 of 11 
 
 

I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on April 20, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a.   

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 629-15:  Taco Bell Zone Change      
                    (PZ-11-15-ZC) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 
Subject: Ordinance No. 629-15 Taco Bell zone change                                    Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 1 of 5 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 629-15: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .55 ACRES, FROM 
NEIGHBORHOOD MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) ZONING DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY 
BUSINESS COMMERCIAL (B-2) ZONING DISTRICT (APN 200-47-0250). 

REQUEST: 

This is a request by Hitchens Associates Architects, on behalf of Matthew Ritter and 
James and Janet Mannato, for approval of a zone change request to change the zoning 
on approximately .55 acres, located at the northeast corner of 3rd Street and Phoenix 
Street, from Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District (R-2) to Highway Business 
Commercial Zoning District (B-2).  

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Taco Bell Corporation has been interested in locating a restaurant in the Florence 
area and has investigated numerous sites along the State Route 79 Corridor in the past 
with no success until recently.  Finding a suitable site has been an ongoing challenge 
until the opportunity to combine three parcels at the northwest corner of 3rd Street and 
State Route 79 became a viable option.  This combination of lots is vital to the proposed 
Taco Bell restaurant in order to accommodate site improvements, setbacks and Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT) required right-of-way.  
 
The purpose of this application is to obtain proper zoning on the largest of three parcels 
of land for the proposed restaurant. The three subject parcels are designated as 
Highway Mixed Use (HMU) in the Town 2020 General Plan and the HMU designation is 
primarily intended to assist with the revitalization of older areas and to provide for a mix 
of highway-oriented retail goods and commercial services for commuters, workers and 
residents.  Typical uses within this HMU include lodging, retail, entertainment, 



 
Subject: Ordinance No. 629-15 Taco Bell zone change                                    Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 2 of 5 
 

professional services, restaurants, automotive-related businesses and mid-to-high 
density residential projects that are part of mixed use developments.   
 
ANALYSIS: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Surrounding Land Uses and  Zoning  Districts: 

  
Zoning Classification 

 
Existing Use 

 
North 

 
Neighborhood Multi-Family 

Zoning District  
(R-2) 

 
Residential 

 
East 

 
Highway Business Commercial 

Zoning District  
(B-2) 

 
Commercial 

Retail/Professional Office 

 
South 

 
Neighborhood Multi-Family 

Zoning District  
(R-2)

 
Commercial Retail 

 
West 

 
Single-Family Residential 

(R1-6) 

 
Residential 

 
On-Site 

 
Neighborhood Multi-Family 

Zoning District  
(R-2)

 
Commercial Retail 



 
Subject: Ordinance No. 629-15 Taco Bell zone change                                    Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 3 of 5 
 

Map of the Area 
 

 
 
The proposed site consists of three parcels.  Two parcels are situated fronting State 
Route 79 and the third parcel is located behind the highway frontage property.  The 
front two lots are already zoned Highway Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2) 
and the rear lot zoned Neighborhood Multi- Family Zoning District (R-2). 
 
The subject parcel has no permanent structures on site and the applicant will combine 
all parcels, if the zone change is approved by the Town Council. 
 
The applicant has attended Technical Review Committee meetings with staff and has 
worked diligently to respond to staff concerns.  The Design Review application for Taco 
Bell Restaurant will be presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission at a later 
date. 
 
 



 
Subject: Ordinance No. 629-15 Taco Bell zone change                                    Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 4 of 5 
 

FINDINGS: 
 
Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed zoning is consistent with the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan, 

specifically the HMU designation. 

2. The proposed zoning and development of the site should facilitate ongoing 
revitalization and redevelopment efforts along the State Route 79 Corridor. 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing was mailed to all 
property owners within 300 feet of the site.  Property posting for Notice of Public 
Hearings was posted on site and advertisements in the local Town paper, per Town 
requirements.  Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 and Town of 
Florence Development Code, a public hearing is required for a zone change.  
 
Staff notes that as of this writing, a phone call in opposition was received; however, the 
caller did not leave their name or number.  
 
HEARINGS: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission/Town Council meeting schedule for this 
application is as follows: 
 
 April 2, 2015                Planning and Zoning Public Hearing 
 
 May 4, 2015    Town Council Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
 
 May 18, 2015   Town Council and 2nd Reading/Action 
 
All meetings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers, 775 North Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona 85132. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Approval of this zone change will allow Taco Bell to proceed with the development of 
their Florence restaurant, which will have a positive impact on the Town. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that the zone change for Taco Bell (PZ-11-
15 ZC) is in compliance with the Town’s 2020 General Plan and is in the interest of 



 
Subject: Ordinance No. 629-15 Taco Bell zone change                                    Meeting Date: May 18, 2015 
Page 5 of 5 
 

general welfare, health and safety of the public.  The Planning and Zoning Commission 
has forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation on this zone change, as 
described in Exhibit A-1 and A-2, to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The development of the subject site, as described in Exhibit A-1 and A-2 
attached, shall be in conformance to any applicable Town Codes and 
Ordinances. 

 
2. Property Owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 

Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 

 
3. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 629-15 
Exhibits A-1 and A-2 
Application Materials 
Letter of Opposition 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ORDINANCE NO.  629-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .55 ACRES, FROM 
NEIGHBORHOOD MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) ZONING 
DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL (B-2) ZONING 
DISTRICT (APN 200-47-0250). 

 
WHEREAS, a request to change the existing zoning on the subject property from 

Neighborhood Multi-Family Residential (R-2) to Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 
has been proposed and a public hearing has been held by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found the zone change is 

in conformance with the 2020 Town’s General Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the Mayor and 

Council of the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation for the zone change, 
subject to certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council of the 

Town of Florence and the recommended zone change has been found to be 
appropriate and further found to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents 
of the Town and its orderly growth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
The Zoning Map of Florence, Arizona, is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
classification of the parcel of land depicted on Exhibits A-1 and A-2, attached hereto, 
from Neighborhood Multi-Family Residential (R-2) to Highway Business Commercial (B-
2) Zoning District, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development of the subject site, as described in Exhibits A-1 and A-2 
attached, shall be in conformance to any applicable Town Codes and 
Ordinances. 

 
2. Property Owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 

Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 18th  day of May, 2015. 

       ______________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

ATTEST:                                              APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



E 3rd St

N 
Ph

oe
ni

x 
St

N 
Pi

na
l P

ar
kw

ay
 A

ve

200-47-0250

200-47-0210

200-47-042A

200-47-0200

200-47-023A

200-47-024A

20
0-

47
-0

22
0

200-47-019A

200-47-0430
20

0-
47

-0
44

0

20
0-

47
-0

17
0

200-47-0180
20

0-
47

-0
26

0

20
0-

47
-0

19
B

20
0-

47
-0

27
0

20
0-

47
-0

40
0

Exhibit A-1:Taco Bell
B-2 Zone Change

This map is created for reference
purposes only and is to be used at
your own risk.  The Town of
Florence makes no warranty as to
the accuracy or completeness of
the information contained in this
map and assumes no liability for
any errors or omissions contained
therein, nor for any direct, indirect,
or consequential damages which
may be caused by its use. It is the
user's responsibility to verify all
information conatined herein.
2/27/2015          2015-31

0 20 40Feet ´

Site Location
Town Limits

Parcel Lines

Legal Description
Refer to Exhibit A-2 for information
pertaining to the legal description
for each parcel



Exhibit A-2: Legal Description of Taco Bell Zone Change 
 
PARCEL 200-47-0250: 
 
ALL OF BLOCK 26, TOWNSITE OF FLORENCE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF 
RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA; 
 
TOGETHER WITH THE EAST 30 FEET AND THE NORTH 30 FEET BY 155 FEET 
ADJACENT. 





































































MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Charles Montoya, Town Manager 

Cc:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 

  Department Heads 

Date:  May 18, 2015 

Re:  Bi-Weekly Update  

 
Department Updates 
  
Administration 

• Cuen Building:  Title and keys have been turned over to Mr. Smallidge.  Staff has 
met with Mr. Smallidge to explain the process in the Historic District.    

• Election Information:  Attached is the ballot issue report.   334 ballots were rejected 
by the post office.  As of May 13, 2015, 32 percent of the ballots have been 
returned.    Four people have contacted Pinal County because they did not receive a 
ballot in their packet.  Three people contacted Pinal County to request a new ballot; 
all were reissued.  Five ballots were reissued because of bad addresses.  Election 
results will be announced May 19, 2015, on the front page of the Town website. 

 
Community Development 

• Initiating work on annexation, General Plan and PUD process for the Bonnybrooke 
Solar Project, east of Florence. 

• Design Review for Monterra Solar Project was approved.  Commencing work on 
review of construction plans. 

• Helping Happy Adobe with transition to new locations. 
• Working on Main Street Extension Tree Project. 
• Working on possible annexation and zoning of property along the Hunt Highway 

curve. 
• Preparing for Town Engineering division’s transfer to Community Development 

office. 
• Assisting with many inquiries regarding buildings and real estate in Florence. 

 
Finance Department 

• Budget Committee met to discuss the two Fiscal Year 2015/2016 budgets scenarios. 
• Expansion of the customer service window completed and is now operational. 
• Completed preparations for first bid on housing rehabilitation program. 

 
 
 

 



Information Technology Department 
• Met with the contractor and special systems company to move forward with the final 

component phase of the library and aquatics project. 
• Provided specifications to vendor to install an improved audio/video recording 

system for Channel 11. 
• Completed the configuration of the Heritage Park, Town Hall and Police Department 

cameras and the cameras are now online.  Fitness Center cameras will be online 
next week. 

• Completed the activation of the fire alarm monitoring for the South Plant facility. 
• Completed the installation and configuration of the Council Chambers sound 

system.  The additional five microphones are now online. 
 

Library 
• Rose Bebris consulted with the Director of the DeGrazia Foundation regarding the 

proper cleaning and display of the library’s DeGrazia tapestry.  With input from the 
project architect, an appropriate location in the new facility has identified to display 
the piece.  The tapestry “El Burrito,” crafted by German artisans from a print of Ted 
DeGrazia’s original painting, was donated by the DeGrazia Art and Cultural 
Foundation to the Florence Community Library in 1994.  

• The air conditioning in the library is currently out of service. Due to the age of the 
unit, replacement parts needed to be special ordered.   FUSD staff expects to 
receive the parts the week of May 11, 2015. 

• 1,995 total items were circulated between Saturday, May 2 2015 and Friday, May 8, 
2015.  144 holds were placed. 276 computer users were recorded in the computer 
lab. The average computer use session was 50.254 minutes. For the week of April 
26, 2015 – May 2, 2015, there were 365 wireless sessions. 
 

Parks and Recreation 
• Staff attended the weekly meeting with the Territory Square – Library/Recreation 

Complex Project Team and Low Mountain Design-Build Team.  At the Aquatic 
Center, carpentry, electrical and plumbing are ongoing and they are continuing the 
exterior fence around the pools.  The pool deck continues to be poured in sections.  
At the Library and Community Center, interior carpentry continues and roofing is 
being installed.  Site work also continues, with the majority of the parking lot asphalt 
scheduled to be installed next week.  Fencing continues to be installed around the 
tennis and pickleball courts.  Grading and installation of the SCIDD pipe in ongoing.  
APS, Southwest Gas, Cox Communications and Century Link work continues. 

• Congratulations to Erasmo “Beebo” Mendivil and Alison Feliz, Recreation 
Programmers, for successfully completing the Certified Parks and Recreation 
Professional Exam.  Attaining the CPRP designation shows that staff have met 
education and experience qualifications, and illustrates a commitment to the 
profession as well as knowledge and understanding of key concepts within parks 
and recreation. 

 
 
 
 



Police 
• Officers worked “Cinco de Mayo”-Town of Florence event-no incidents to report. 
• Officers will be working with the DUI Task Force in Casa Grande for Cinco de Mayo. 
• Chief Hughes, Lt. Tryon, and Officers participated in the Law Enforcement Torch 

Run for Special Olympics. 
• Sgt. Tatlock attended a meeting at Pinal County Emergency Operations Center in 

reference to a Multijurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
• Lt. Tryon attended the Pinal County Law Enforcement Memorial on Thursday, May 

7, 2015. 
• 2015 K-9 vehicle had decals installed.   
• Certified officers completed daytime handgun qualifications. 

 
Utilities 

• Replacement vacuum excavator has not been shipped to date. 
• Timm Wainscott has obtained a Grade 2 Water Distribution Certification. 
• Safety improvements have been competed at the Hunt Hwy Attaway Road 

intersection, including new signage, striping and guardrails. 
• Projects updates: 

 

Project 
Completion of Work 
or Days 

Status 

Diversion Dam Road 240 days 

Bonds & insurance documents have not 
been received from RK Sanders. Upon 
receipt a preconstruction meeting with 
be held. 

North Florence Water Tank June/July 2015 Work continuing. 

Willow/Central/22nd Streets NA 
Change Order No. 3 scheduled for 
Council approval on June 1, 2015. 

SWWTP EPS/Chlorine 
Mods/Admin Bldg 

June/July 2015 

Work ongoing. Excavation has begun 
for the new vaults and pump station. 
Interior walls are being constructed in 
the old section of the building. 

SWWTP Filter Project January 2016 Work ongoing. 
Water Tower Painting 35 No change. 
PD Parking Lot 90 Work ongoing. 

Well #2 65 
Drilling has started. Well depth is 
approximately 400 feet.  Southwest 
Groundwater is monitoring progress. 

Main Street Extension June 24, 2015 

Visus is installing ABC. Staff talked to 
ADOT regarding approval of 
intersection work. Steve Mishler is 
checking on status. Steve will be 
leaving Tucson to work on a Phoenix 
project and is setting a meeting with his 
replacement. 

 



 
Well #4 to #5 
Transmission Main 

60 Work ongoing. 

SWWTP Lagoon Closure 20 
Bonds & insurance requested. NTP 
should be given next week. 

Fire Station #2 Traffic 
Signal 

150 Bonds and insurance requested. 

 


	May 18, 2015 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6b. 2015 AZ Governor's Heritage Preservation Honor Award

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Change Order  No. 3 Apache Underground and Excavation for Bailey Street
	7b. Change Order No. 1 Coolidge Engine and Pump
	7c. Change Order No. 1 Ripple Industries
	7d. Chairman Celaya Resignation
	7e. Resolution No. 1520-15 Acceptance of Funds from ACJC NCHIP
	7f. April 6, 2015  Council Minutes
	7f. April 20, 2015 Council Minutes

	7g i. April 1, 2015 ACC Minutes
	7g ii. September 18, 2014 PZ Minutes
	7g ii. October 16, 2014 PZ Minutes
	7g ii. April 2, 2015 PZ Minutes


	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Ordinance No. 629-15 Taco Bell

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a. Council Seat Interviews
	9a i. Jeffrey Wooley
	9a ii. Tom Smith
	9a iii. Karen J. Wall
	9a iv. Art Buckley
	9a v. S, Dulaine Coleman


	10. MANAGER'S REPORT
	10. Manager's Report




